Brigham Young University Law School

BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1984

Mary Doe, Guardian Ad Litem for Jane Doe v. Roberto v. Arguelles, et al.: Brief of Appellant

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action by the Plaintiff-Appellant to recover damages against the Defendants for injuries received by the ward of the Plaintiff-Appellant as a result of a violent sexual assault upon her person by the Defendant Roberto Arguelles. The Plaintiff-Appellant contends that the Defendants were grossly negligent, reckless, wilfull, and negligent in their confinement, treatment and release of the Defendant Roberto Arguelles from the Youth Development Center (Y.D.C.).

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Third District Court, Judge Philip R. Fishler presiding, granted the Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgmen dismissing Plaintiff-Appellant's Complaint on two grounds:

- The acts complained of were discretionary function for which the State Defendants have Statutory Immunity; and
- 2. The State Defendants have Quasi-Judicial Immun: for decisions made by and pursuant to paroling authority.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff-Appellant seeks to have the District Court
Order dismissing Plaintiff's Complaint reversed and have to
case remanded to the Third District Court for trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The defendant Roberto V. Arguelles' arrest record, found on Page 178 of the Record on Appeal, reveals, in addition to various crimes against property, that on 10/6/78, he arrested for sexual abuse; on 11/9/78, he was arrested for somy; and on 2/26/79, he was arrested for two counts of rape. Should be noted that the sexual abuse charge and the some

charge were against 10-year-old and 6-year-old girls respectively. All of these crimes occurred prior to the vicious assault on the plaintiff-appellant's ward, which is the basis of this lawsuit.

Without exception, the health care professionals who examined the defendant Arguelles make reference to his propensity for violence and, specifically, sexual violence. On March 27, 1979, Spencer Wood, M.S., a psychologist employed at the Utah State Hospital, conducted a psychological evaluation of the defendant. Mr. Wood's report states in part:

"The sexual acting out represents a serious social problem, but since Robert is not emotionally disturbed, he should be held accountable for his behavior. Unfortunately, the lack of motivation and characterlogical traits combine to make him a poor treatment candidate." (emphasis added)

(Page 339, Record on Appeal)

On March 29, 1979, Kenneth Slaugh, Psychiatric Social Worker, and Cantril Nielsen, M.D., Director - Youth Services, employees of the State Mental Hospital, conducted evaluations of the defendant Arguelles. Their summary was as follows:

[&]quot;. . . his emotional stability was such that he could and should be held accountable for his behaviors.

Our evaluations also revealed that Robert is mainly characterlogical in nature and that his reactions and interactions were mostly on an adult level. He is an extremely sophisticated, smooth individual who is capable of manipulating his environment for his own satisfaction and pleasure and uses such mechanisms as anger and violence to achieve these ends.

Our recommendations of clinical staff at the Youth Center was that Robert be returned to the court and held accountable for his behaviors and also indicated that we saw him as a dangerous individual who is in need of a secure 24 hour residential setting." (emphasis added) (Page 343, Record on Appeal)

Further, under "Recommended Therapeutic Modalities" in the se Report, it was stated:

> "As was previously mentioned we feel quite strongly that Robert is a dangerous individual and is in need of a 24 hour residential setting. We feel that he can be held responsible for his behaviors and should be and that in the future he may benefit from some counseling efforts if he can be controlled to the extent that he does not sabotage or manipulate the counseling efforts." (Page 344, Record on Appeal)

In the July 16, 1979, report prepared by Margari Wilburn, Ph.D., psychologist at the Utah State Hospital, defendant admitted to killing another individual who had struchim in the face. Dr. Wilburn drew the conclusion: "He is un-motivated for treatment and not appropriate for the Sexual Offenders Program." (Page 347, Record on Appeal)

In a letter dated March 27, 1979, from Kenneth Slaugh, Psychiatric Social Worker, and Cantril Nielsen, M.D., Director - Youth Services (Page 199, Record on Appeal) on evaluation was written to the Honorable Regnal W. Garff, Jr., the sentencing judge of the defendant, which stated, among other things, that the reason for the defendant Arguelles being at the State Hospital Youth Center was because of the defendant's "recent sexual acting-out and his potentially violent behavior".

"We recognize that Robert's sexual deviancy is an extremely serious problem but cannot justify or conclude that it is a direct result of any major mental illness. We feel quite strongly that the actions Robert took against the younger girls was out of anger, and that he acted with full knowledge and control of his behavior.

Our clinical staff finds that Robert is mainly characterological in nature and that his reactions and interactions are on an adult level. We have been able to easily ascertain that Robert is an extremely sophisticated, smooth individual who is capable of manipulating his environment for his own satisfaction and pleasure. We are quite convinced that the anger and violence that Robert shows are results of Robert not being able to manipulate his environment and are ways in which he can usually end up getting what he wants.

Therefore, we as a staff at the Youth Center, feel that Robert is not appropriate to the adolescent program and that he can and should be held accountable for his actions. We see him as a potentially dangerous individual and concur with the recommendation of Mr. Smith from the Kearns Probation Unit that Robert should be placed in a secure, 24-hour residential setting."

(Defendants' Exhibit 13) (emphasis added) (Page 341, Record on Appeal)

Mark Smith was the Probation Officer of the defendant Arguelles and it was his desire that Arguelles should serve the Sex Offender Program at the State Mental Hospital. The State Mental Hospital refused to accept the defendant Arguelles due: his refusal to cooperate in the treatment and due to the fathat it was their professional opinion that his problem 40 characterological rather than psychotic. It was felt that : defendant should be placed in a penal-type institution, such: the Y.D.C. Mark Smith therefore recommended that the defends be placed in a secure, residential setting for long-term tres-(Page 351, Record on Appeal). Mr. Smith was the mov! force behind trying to get defendant Arguelles in the Sex fender Program at the State Mental Hospital. This was due to: fact that he felt that the defendant was dangerous enough that had to be in a "basically lock-up situation where the path does not have the ability to run away", (Mark Smith deposit)

page 101), and that the "State Hospital Sexual Offenders Program was the best appropriate facility". (Smith deposition, page 102). He felt, however, that since the Sex Offenders Program refused to accept him, "he had to consider the community and had to recommend commitment."

"I had reviewed the reluctance of other facilities to accept, and I had reviewed the recommendations from 5 or 6 psychological and psychiatric institutions and I think I made it very clear that he was a threat to the community." (emphasis added)

(Smith deposition, page 103)

The defendant Arguelles was, therefore, "committed to the custody of the Superintendent of the State Youth Development Center for secure care, education and training for a minimum of six months and until legally discharged as provided by law."

U.C.A. 64-6-12 states:

"Every person committed to the school shall remain until he shall arrive at the age of 19 years, or be legally discharged. . . ."

Judge Garff was so concerned about the circumstances of Arguelles' commitment to the Y.D.C. that in addition to the Commitment Order, he also sent a letter to the Y.D.C. (Page 353, Record on Appeal). In the Judge's deposition, he stated that he

had only written three of such letters in all of his years on a Bench; he did so to articulate his grave concerns about to defendant Arguelles. The sentencing order gave the Y.D.C. Superintendent some flexibility as to the actual release date.

"It would give you some flexibility as to his release date and would make it possible for him to be released prior to a 6-month period from this date. However, it is also explained that this is not something he should expect because it can also mean that he can be at the institution until he is 21 years of age. . . . I would hope at this point since this is also explained that the youth be able to pull together a treatment program for his particular needs.

As you read the information in the Social File, you will see that there was grave concern by those experts who have evaluated him, that he constitutes a danger to the community aggressiveness because of his sexual acting-out behavior. I think it is imperative that he have a treatment program that effective for him and that he responds to before he is released back to the community, whether this takes a few months or few years. I don't believe that anyone else should be jeopardized by his behavior until the state has met its responsibility to treat the problem; or that if that is impossible, to hold him in custody." (emphasis added) (Page 353, Record on Appeal)

In Judge Garff's deposition, he stated his reasons writing the letter as follows:

"Because I was incensed at the - - you know, it is obvious from the procedures that I had used that I was struggling to find what I thought would be an appropriate program for this young man; but I considered him to be dangerous and that he needed some psychotherapy to deal with the problem. I felt like I had been given the run-around at any possible treatment facilities the state had, and so, out of desperation, he was sent to the YDC. I was angry and I wanted to appraise him of the fact that I considered this young man to be dangerous." (emphasis added) (Garff deposition, page 33).

Judge Garff's deposition reflects the following dialoque:

"Q: Did you ever have an anticipation that Mr. Arguelles would be kept at the Youth Development Center for a few years?

A: Yes, that crossed my mind because I didn't know if they could put a treatment program together for him and I really felt that he was the kind of person that if they couldn't do that, then he needed to be held as long as possible."

(Garff's deposition, page 37)

Mark Smith, in his deposition, had concern about sending the defendant Arguelles to the Youth Development Center because he felt he could "manipulate the system" and "float through the system". (Smith deposition, page 117). He stated:

"I had some concern that with the Youth Development Center's program, is basically a behavior and modification type, earn points and have home visits type of situation, have privileges and be able to earn your release, I think Robert would very quickly figure out what he would have to do and how fast he would have to do it and take care of it very quickly."

Mark Smith further stated:

"Usually subsequent behavior of a serious nature will catch you off-guard a little bit by surprise and you can kind of have to go after the fact. The unusual nature with Robert's case was that he was red-flagged way early in the system. He probably had more psychological and psychiatrists and evaluations done than any client I have worked with, and I have never heard any one of my clients having any more done than he did in terms of predicting possible future behavior. . .

Q: So you were not surprised of his rape of Jane Doe?

A: I was not surprised.

Q: Did you feel that that was foreseeable?

A: Yes."
(Smith deposition, pages 127 and 128)

Benjamin Taylor, M.D., psychiatrist, who contracts with the Youth Development Center, issued a number of report.

defendant Stromberg and the State Youth Development Center.

full text of said reports are found in defendants' Exhibit 15. In the April 24, 1979, report, Dr. Taylor states:

"I asked if he had ever seriously hurt anyone and he commented, 'I've messed people up. I've used bats on people. But I've never been busted for that.'
(Page 208, Record on Appeal)

With some pride, Robert then commented, 'I've stabbed people.'"
(Page 209, Record on Appeal)

Further, in the April 24th report, Taylor summarizes:

"I consider that Robert has to be thought of as being dangerous, both in regards to harming women and, for that matter, male persons." (Page 210, Record on Appeal)

On April 30, 1979, Dr. Taylor issued another report. He ends that report by stating:

"I had occasion to talk to Mr. Stromberg about this interview and I have also talked with Mr. Tatten on two occasions in regard to Robert. It is my feeling that Robert very likely will act out again aggressively in a sexual context with girls or women. It is my feeling that if no therapeutic program is brought to bear, that Robert very likely will seriously harm a woman or a girl at sometime in his life or may, in fact, be harmed by them. It is abundantly obvious that his relationship with women is literally associated with aggressive themes and acting out. . . It would be my feeling

that whatever planning is effected for this young man, that intensive, on-going therapy should be a part of any program. Diagnostically, I do not think that Robert gives evidence of psychosis, diagnostic category would like fall int he area of neurotic and characterological difficulties." (emphasis added)

(Page 214, Record on Appeal)

On June 14, 1979, Mr. Taylor issued the follows: report:

"The association of sexuality and fighting has been consistent in this young man's life." (Page 215, Record on Appeal)

Dr. Taylor goes on to actually predict the attack that the defendant Arguelles perpetrated on the plaintiff, that is the base of this lawsuit, when he stated:

"I think Robert needs to be in a long-term psychotherapy program where he can obtain some understanding of his association of sexuality and aggression and can work with these two things. It is my feeling that if this young man does not get help in this matter, there is a good likelihood that Robert or some woman will find themselves in a very tragic situation at sometime in his life, that is by way of aggressive acting out." (emphasis added) (Page 217, Record on Appeal)

Of particular relevance is Dr. Taylor's psychiatric note of August 28, 1979, in which he discussed the program that was being set up for the defendant as a treatment program. He states:

"In any event I was not a bit encouraged by this discussion. It sounded very fly-by-night and perhaps even fictious. My opinion about a therapy program for this young man would be a very substantial therapist, perhaps two or even three times a week."

(Page 218, Record on Appeal)

They discussed the use of a female therapist and "talked about the evidently mutually aggressive relationship of one of his girlfriends and he assured me, with a pleasant smile, that he had learned now to give up fighting with girls." In summation, Dr. Taylor states:

"I am still concerned greatly about this young man and other persons with whom he might come in contact. He is good looking, he is quite successful in his way, and more to the point, he has so far been successful in skating through various dangerous situations. . . I feel that it is certain that this young man will get into further difficulty if there are not very considerable changes effected by way of therapeutic program and other efforts. . . I have spoken with Mr. Stromberg on several occasions about the letter received from Judge Garff, and hopefully the appropriate group

gathering in regard to a program for Robert can be accomplished soon."
(Page 219, Record on Appeal)

That was the last meeting Dr. Taylor had with the defendant Arguelles, but nothing in any of the reports prepare by Dr. Taylor indicates in any way that he had responded to treatment program. In fact, it refers only to the formulation a treatment program. Therefore, nothing within Dr. Taylor's reports would indicate that the State had complied with Judge Garff's requirements in his August 7, 1979, letter, or the Arguelles had become in any way less dangerous.

The defendant Arguelles was then interviewed and examined by Janet Warburton, Psychology Trainee at the Y.D.C. Solution issued a report on November 8, 1979, in which she stated:

"He was seen as characterological and is now thought to be more appropriate for a correctional placement. While testing and mental status exam tend to confirm this, it is of critical importance that Robert deal with his He has so emotional problems with women. closely paired sex and aggression that he is a danger, and if not dealt with in a therapeutic sense will undoubtedly hurt other women. . . . It is strongly recommended that Robert begin long-term out-patient psycho therapy as a condition and as part of his home visits. He should be released only after he is well established in such a therapeutic relationship with a mature female therapist. Until Robert has resolved some of his aggressive/sexual

feelings he must continue to be seen as a danger." (emphasis added) (Page 264, Record on Appeal)

Again, it is important to note that just one month prior to his release, the psychologist assigned to him still sees him as being a danger toward women in terms of aggressive sexual acting out. There is nothing within this report that indicates he has in any way responded to any type of treatment.

It should be noted that prior to the defendant's release, the defendant only had one visit, that being on November 30, 1979, with Annette Gilmore, who was a graduate student in social work, working in family counseling for FHP. Nothing in her records would indicate that a "therapeutic relationship had been established." On December 5, 1980, just two weeks prior to the defendant's release, the following notation was made in Janet Warburton's chart:

> "Long-term therapy and a carefully monitored release program . . . I concur [he's too good to be true] watch!

> On the basis of my limited observations, he has high potential for being dangerous and needs to be carefully followed up by P.O. for treatment." (Page 355, Record on Appeal)

The professional view, again, is that the defenca Arguelles was still a danger to others. In spite of all of foregoing, the State Youth Development Center entered into placement agreement with the defendant on December 19, 1979. The placement requirement was:

- 1. Robert will reside with his mother:
- Robert will attend community school Monday through Thursday, 6:00 to 10:00;
- Robert must obey all civil laws;
- 4. Robert will maintain weekly contact with his placement officer, Craig Berthold, for the first 30 days of his placement and thereafter on a schedule set up by Robert and his placement officer;
- Robert will meet weekly with Annette Gilmore (Annette Gilmore was crossed out and "a professional counselor" handwritten over her name);
- Robert will work regularly at Owens Insulation.
 (Page 272, Record on Appeal)

It is important to note that in that placement agreement, Annette Gilmore's name was crossed out and "professions counselor" was added. Therefore, it was a requirement for release that he attend counseling sessions with a profession counselor. This never occurred.

The only counselor that defendant Arguelles had any contact with after his release from the Y.D.C. was Annette Gilmore, a graduate student in social work. He met with her prior to his release on November 30, 1979; he met with her again on December 14, 1979; then on December 21, 1979; then on January 4, 1980; and not again until February 18, 1980; and then on February 22, 1980. That was the last occasion on which the defendant met with the student, Annette Gilmore. A review of Annette Gilmore's chart, found at page 357 of the Record on Appeal, indicates the sessions that the defendant Arguelles had with Annette Gilmore could, in no way, be called intensive psychotherapy, or for that matter, any type of therapy. The conversations are light and do not deal with his sexual acting-out problems. It is clear from reading these notes that the sessions were not the type of therapy either contemplated by Judge Garff or required by the release agreement. The August 28, 1979, meeting with Dr. Taylor was, in fact, the last occasion that the defendant Arguelles really spent with a "professional therapist". In paragraph 37 of the defendants' Statement of Facts, it is stated:

> "When Mr. Stromberg was informed at the exit interview that the counselor Arguelles had been seeing at Family Health Plan was a graduate student, he amended the agreement and

required that the parole officer either make sure that a professional counsel see Arguelles himself or supervise Annette Gilmore, the graduate student." (Page 119, Record on Appeal)

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