1983

Mary Doe, Guardian Ad Litem for Jane Doe v. Roberto v. Arguelles, et al. : Brief of Respondents

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

In fulfilling this task, the Board must exercise its judgment by determining the materiality of certain studies and documents and the propriety of relying thereon in reaching its final assessment. Further, the manner and degree of consideration with which the Board examines these materials is inextricably tied to its ultimate decision. This allegation thus addresses the Board's exercise of its discretionary function.

679 F.2d at 482.

In Epting v. State, 546 P.2d 242 (Utah 1976), this Court held that the discretionary function exception applied to give immunity to the State when the children of a murder victim sued the State of Utah alleging that it was negligent in allowing the murderer, a state prison inmate involved in a work-release program, to escape and kill their mother. This Court upheld the dismissal of the action holding that the decision to place an inmate into the community on work-release was within the "discretionary function" doctrine. The Court held that the creation of a work release program was a discretionary decision.

Continuing, the Court said:

In addition to the exercise of this judgment as to the value and practicability of such a program generally, there are problems about its

advisability as to each individual prisoner. In order to weigh the positive values of possible benefit for him in such a program against the negative factors such as the likelihood of his escaping and engaging in more antisocial conduct, it is essential to consider the various aspects of his personality: his intelligence, aptitudes and qualities of character such as honesty, integrity and industry; and whether he has demonstrated a sincere desire to rehabilitate himself so that there is a reasonable probability that he will succeed. Accordingly, we agree with the view of the trial court that the handling of the prisoner Michael Hart was something which "arises out of the exercise of a discretionary function" for which subsection (1) of Section 63-30-10, quoted above, has retained sovereign immunity.

546 P.2d at 244.

The same analysis applies to the present case. The decision to release Roberto Arguelles from the Youth Development Center inherently involved consideration and weighing of all factors cited in Epting and many others; i.e., the possibility of future violence, the negative effect of further incarceration on the juvenile's attitude, the permanence of the behavior modification achieved at the Youth Development Center, etc. An enormous amount of data, theories and projections had to be integrated and evaluated before a decision could be reached. This Court has said that an inmate's "rehabilitation is the responsibility of professional men, and the manner in which it is accomplished

must be a matter of discretion." Beal v. Turner, 454 P.2d 624, 626 (Utah 1969). Utah law clearly supports a finding that the decision to release Roberto Arguelles was a discretionary function for which the State Derendants are immune from suit. Utah is not alone in holding a release decision to be within the discretionary function exception.

In Cairl v. State, 323 N.W.2d 20 (Min. 1982), a state facility released a mentally retarded juvenile with dangerous propensities on a holiday home leave. While at home, the youth started a fire, as he had done on several prior occasions, which destroyed an apartment building and caused a death. The Supreme Court of Minnesota, which decided the case in August, 1982, first explained the reasons for the discretionary function exemption, which was almost identical to Utah's.

This exemption from tort liability recognizes that the courts, through the vehicle of a negligence action, are not an appropriate forum to review and second-guess the acts of government which involve "the exercise of judgment or discretion." (Citations omitted.) As stated in Weiss v. Trote, 7 N.Y.2d 579, 167 N.E.2d 63, 200 N.Y./S.2d 409 (1960): To accept a jury's verdict as to the reasonableness and safety of a plan of governmental services and prefer it over the judgment of the governmental body which originally considered and passed on the matter would be to obstruct normal governmental operations and to place in inexpert hands what the Legislature has seen fit to entrust to experts.

Id. at 23.

The Minnesota court then followed the planning level-operational level distinction which is currently accepted by this Court (Carroll v. State Road Commission, 496 P.2d 888 (Utah 1972)), to determine whether the release decision fit within the discretionary function exception. Id. at 23 n. 1. The Court then held:

The decision to release Tom Connolly, involving as it does the professional evaluation of such factors as the protection of the public, his physical and psychological needs, the relative suitability of the home environment, and the need to reintegrate him into the community, is precisely the type of governmental decision that discretionary immunity was designed to protect from tort litigation by after-the-fact review.

Id. at 23 (emphasis added).

In Johnson v. State, 447 P.2d 352 (Ca. 1968), the Supreme Court of California held that the discretionary function exception of California Gov. Code § 820.2 applied to a juvenile release decision. The Court found:

The Youth Authority unquestionably makes some decisions falling within the "discretionary function" language of section 820.2, as we have heretofore defined it [planning versus operational levels]. As to the determination of whether to place a youth on parole, for example, the Legislature has specifically granted to the Youth Authority the power to weigh potential risks and benefits and to establish standards: "When, in the opinion of the Youth Authority, any person committed to or confined in any such school deserves parole according to regulations established for the purpose, and it

will be to his advantage to be paroled, the Authority may grant parole under such conditions as it deems best. . . (Welf. & Inst. Code § 1176). The decision to parole thus comprises the resolution of policy considerations, entrusted by statute to a coordinate branch of government, that compels immunity from judicial reexamination.

Id. at 361.

The authority of the Superintendent of the Youth Development Center to parole inmates is very similar to those of the California Youth Authority. Utah Code Ann. § 64-6-8, 12. Arguelles was released pursuant to the statutory powers of the Superintendent after careful consideration of all factors involved. The State Defendants are therefore immune from this suit by operation of the retention of absolute immunity for the exercise of a discretionary governmental function. Utah Code Ann. § 63-30-10(1)(a). Appellant cites no cases in which it is held that a parole decision is not a discretionary function for purposes of immunity. The overwhelming authority is that the decision to release a prisoner on parole is a discretionary function to which immunity must apply. The Respondents request this Court to affirm the District Court's dismissal of this action.

[Also, see Thompson v. County of Alameda, 614 P.2d 728 (Cal. 1980); Berry v. State, 400 So.2d 80 (Fla. App. 1981); Papenhausen v. Schoen, 268 N.W.2d 565 (Minn. 1978); Seiss v. McConnell, 255 N.W.2d 2 (Mich. App. 1977);

Adamov v. State, 345 N.E.2d 661 (Ohio Ct. Cl. 1975); and Smart v. United States, 207 F.2d 841 (10th Cir. 1953), all of which are cases in which discretionary function immunity was applied to release or parole decisions.]

POINT II

THE STATE DEFENDANTS ARE IMMUNE ON THE BASIS OF THE DOCTRINE OF QUASI-JUDICIAL IMMUNITY.

The District Court also based its dismissal of this case on the basis of quasi-judicial immunity. As can be seen from the preceding point, and an extensive survey of the cases in this area, the courts around the country are very protective of paroling authorities and their decision-making processes. Because this function is so similar to that performed regularly by judges in criminal courts, most judges recognize the need for immunity, and the serious threat to parole decision making which would arise absent immunity.

The superintendent of the Youth Development Center was the juvenile corrections system's equivalent to the State Board of Pardons in the adult system. The superintendent had the authority to place (parole) a student outside the school. Utah Code Ann. § 64-6-8 (repealed 1981). The superintendent also had the power to discharge (pardon) a student, thereby terminating the state's control over that individual. Utah Code Ann. §§ 64-6-12, 64-4-13 (repealed 1981). This action was an attempt to hold the

superintendent and the State of Utah liable for a parole decision made by this official.

At common law, it has been a long established principle that a judge is immune from suit. Judicial immunity is applied to every judicial officer. Its broad scope and coverage is unaffected by allegations of negligence, recklessness or malice.

Judicial immunity has been extended, at common law, to numerous non-judicial officers. When so extended it is known as quasi-judicial immunity. In McLallen v. Henderson, 492 F.2d 1298 (8th Cir. 1974) the court explained the scope of this immunity.

Judicial immunity is only granted to non-judicial officials who, like judges, must not be unduly inhibited to exercise discretionary authority by the constant fear of personal liability for damages. Applied to non-judicial officials, judicial immunity is termed quasi-judicial immunity and examples are prosecuting attorneys and parole board members.

Id. at 299-300 (emphasis added).

In Pate v. Alabama Board of Pardons and Paroles, 409 F.Supp. 478 (M.D. Ala. 1976) the court elaborated the policy reasons that support the protections afforded by quasi-judicial immunity. Pate was an attempt to recover damages from the parole board, and its members, that were allegedly suffered when plaintiff's decedent was attacked by a parolee.

Parole officials bear a more than ordinary responsibility because of the dangerous traits already demonstrated by those with whom they must deal. This responsibility imposes far greater moral burdens and requires far more difficult legal choices than those met by the average administrative officer. The function of the Parole Board is more nearly akin to that of a judge in imposing sentence and granting or denying probation than it is to that of an executive administrator. It is essential to the proper administration of criminal justice that those who determine whether an individual shall remain incarcerated or be set free should do so without concern over possible personal liability at law for such criminal acts as some parolee will inevitably commit, in other words, that such officials should be able to exercise independent judgment without pressure of personal liability for acts of the subject of their deliberations.

Id. at 479.

In a footnote, the court continued:

The system of rehabilitation practices in this country, involving probation, parole, and pardon, could not be effective if those burdened with the decisions incident thereto were subjected to personal liability for mistakes, the occurrence of which is inherent to the system.

Id. at 479.

The decision to place Roberto Arguelles back in the community was a parole decision. As such, those officials charged with making that decision are covered by quasi-judicial immunity. In Dock v. State of Utah,

C-79-720 (D. Utah, december 1, 1980), the Federal District Court of Utah dismissed an action against the State of Utah's Board of Pardons saying: "The Board of Pardons, in exercising the responsibilities they did, were clothed with quasi-judicial immunity and were not responsible for any error in the method in which the calendaring of his case was handled, lamentable as that may be at this point." Even assuming an error in judgment was made, the defendants in this case would still be immune from this suit. The very purpose of quasi-judicial immunity is to avoid inhibiting the official's functioning in office from fear of lawsuits and personal liability stemming from his official actions. When speaking of judicial immunity, the United States Supreme Court said, in Pierson v. Ray, 386 U.S. 547 (1967):

This immunity applies even when the judge is accused of acting maliciously and corruptly, and it "is not for the protection or benefit of a malicious or corrupt judge, but for the benefit of the public, whose interest it is that the judges should be at liberty to exercise their functions with independence and without fear of consequences."

Id. at 554.

Appellants cite Grimm v. Arizona Board of Pardons and Parole, 564 P.2d 1227 (Ariz. 1977) as authority for the proposition that quasi-judicial immunity does not apply to paroling authorities (App. Brief, p. 22). The Grimm

decision often combines discussions of discretionary function immunity, quasi-judicial immunity, and the non-immunity issue of public duty. Although it does appear that the Grimm court abolished the doctrine of absolute quasi-judicial immunity for parole authorities in Arizona, it did so over a strong dissent, citing an earlier Arizona case:

The words of Justice Udall in Wilson v. Hirst, 67 Ariz. 197, 193 P.2d 461 (1948), which the majority overrules, are as true now as they were then:

"[W]e can also say that we are well aware of the fact that in thus shielding public officers, who act strictly within their jurisdiction in a quasi-judicial capacity, against actions of this sort the rule may work hardship and injustice in individual cases. But there is no middle ground to be occupied in the matter; either all of such suits are to be tolerated or none. The court may occasionally be confronted with the not-unusual situation that calls for subordination of the rights of the few to the interests of the whole body of the public. The doctrine of immunity is not for the benefit of the few who might otherwise be compelled to respond in damages. It is for the benefit of all to whom it applies, that they may be free to act in the exercise of honest judgment, uninfluenced by fear of consequences personal to themselves. This again is not for their personal advantage or benefit. It is only that they may be enabled to render a better public services." 67 Ariz. at 202, 193 P.2d at 464.

Id. at 1237.

The Grimm case has been called an "aberration in the law" by other Arizona courts, Cody v. Sate, 630 P.2d

554, 560 (Ariz. App. 1981). Although Grimm is upheld by the Arizona Supreme Court in Ryan v. State, 656 P.2d 597 (Ariz. 1982), it is on the issue of public duty, not on the issue of quasi-judicial immunity. The author of the opinion in Ryan, Judge Hays, was the dissenting judge in Grimm, and he specifically states in Ryan that he does not retreat from his dissent in Grimm, and that the Ryan case should not be seen as dispositive on the issue of quasi-judicial immunity. 656 P.2d at 599.

The Grimm case is the only case cited by Appellants which suggests that quasi-judicial immunity should not be applicable to paroling authorities. There are a substantial number of federal cases which disagree. See for example, United States v. Irving, 684 F.2d 494 (7th Cir. 1982); Thompson v. Burke, 556 F.2d 231 (3d Cir. 1977); Pope v. Chew, 521 F.2d 400 (4th Cir. 1975). It appears that quasi-judicial immunity is almost uniformly applied to the decision-making role of a parole board or other paroling authority. Respondents urge that Grimm, though relied upon heavily by Appellants, does not and should not represent the law of Utah.

The same policy reasons that have resulted in the creation of an absolute judicial immunity mitigate in favor of an absolute quasi-judicial immunity. Imbler v. Pachtman, 424 U.S. 409 (1976); Lang v. Wood, 92 F.2d 211

(D.C. Cir. 1937). In situations like the present case, though the facts relating to Plaintiff's injuries and suffering are very sad, it is important to recognize the judicial nature of a parole decision and the need for immunity for such decisions. The decision to release Arguelles was not an easy one, nor was it taken lightly by the Superintendent or his staff. But after weighing all factors, and exercising their best professional judgment, it was decided that Arguelles should be released from the institution. That decision has to be made at some point with regard to every juvenile at the Youth Development Center, all of whom have records which include serious felonies. Because of the very difficult nature of these decisions, and the inherent risks to the decision-makers, they must be protected by quasi-judicial immunity. Applying the principle to this case, summary judgment was properly granted in favor of the State Defendants, and this Court is urged to affirm that judgment.

POINT III

THE DOCTRINE OF QUASI-JUDICIAL IMMUNITY IS NOT ABROGATED BY THE UTAH GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY ACT.

Appellant raises for the first time on appeal the argument that the doctrine of quasi-judicial immunity is abrogated by the Utah Governmental Immunity Act. Because this issue was not raised below and therefore not ruled upon

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